EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

FROM: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING

Please see the details below for the Executive Board meeting date, time, and location.

Friday, May 17, 2024 at 10:00 a.m.
In-Person:
Thatcher City Hall
3700 W Main St., Thatcher, Arizona

Via Zoom:
Zoom Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85661023479
Meeting ID: 856 6102 3479
Phone-in Option: +1 346 248 7799 (Houston)

This meeting will be a hybrid meeting with no limitations on in-person attendance. Any
Executive Board members unable to travel to the meeting will be able to attend via Zoom.
The address above is also a link to a Google Map showing the meeting location. If
you are unable to attend, please send an alternate to ensure that we will have a quorum at
the meeting.

The Executive Board Packet will be sent to members through e-mail (via a link to the packet
posted on the SEAGO website) to save postage and copying costs. We will not be
mailing a hard copy of the packet unless you request one.

If you have any questions, please call me at (520) 432-5301 Extension 202. You can also
send an e-mail to kdennis@seago.org.

SouthEastern Arizona Governments Organization - 1403 W. Highway 92, Bisbee, AZ 85603
520-432-5301 7% @ 432-5858 & ® www.seago.or


http://www.seago.org/
https://www.google.com/maps/place/1025+AZ-90,+Benson,+AZ+85602/@31.956713,-110.3411131,16z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x86d6fd5b039894c7:0x98b17d45d2f6db6a!8m2!3d31.9526804!4d-110.3403299
https://www.google.com/maps/place/1025+AZ-90,+Benson,+AZ+85602/@31.956713,-110.3411131,16z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x86d6fd5b039894c7:0x98b17d45d2f6db6a!8m2!3d31.9526804!4d-110.3403299
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85661023479
mailto:kdennis@seago.org

EXECUTIVE BOARD

AGENDA
SEAGO

10:00 A.M., FRIDAY, MAY 17, 2024
IN-PERSON AND VIA ZOOM (see Cover Letter for Zoom details)
3700 W MAIN STREET, THATCHER, ARIZONA

I. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Chair Gomez
/ INTRODUCTIONS
II. MEMBER ENTITIES’ DISCUSSION Chair Gomez
(Common Critical Issues)
I11. CALL TO THE PUBLIC Chair Gomez
IV. COLBY & POWELL PRESENTATION James Usevitch
V. ACTION ITEMS Page No.

1. Consent Agenda
a. Approval of the February 23, 2024 Minutes Chair Gomez 2

2. Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Items
a. Sustainability of Fund Balance (discussion only) Keith Dennis 6

b. Discussion and possible action to approve Keith Dennis 8
the FY 2025 Assessment Schedule

c. Discussion and possible action to approve Dina Curtiss 10
the proposed FY 2025 SEAGO Budget

3. Discussion and possible action to approve to William Osbourne 12
authorize the Executive Director to publish a request for
proposals, evaluate proposals received, and enter into a
contract with a qualified consultant for Graham County
Housing Feasibility Study as requested by staff

4. Discussion and possible action to approve Celeste Vasquez 13
Fiscal Year 2025 AAA Provisional Subaward Recommendations

SouthEastern Arizona Governments Organization - 1403 W. Highway 92, Bisbee, AZ 85603
520-432-5301 7% @ 432-5858 & ® www.seago.or


http://www.seago.org/

5. Discussion and possible action to approve a one-time Keith Dennis
retirement bonus to former SEAGO Executive Director Randy Heiss

VI. INFORMATION ITEMS

A. Future Meeting Dates Keith Dennis
B. Quarterly Finance Report Dina Curtiss
C. Community Development Report William Osbourne
D. SEAGO Economic Development District Report Robin Dumas
E. AAA Program Updates Celeste Vasquez
F. Transportation Program Updates Chris Vertrees
VIl. RTAC REPORT Kevin Adam
VIII.STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS/ CURRENT EVENTS Chair Gomez
IX. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS Chair Gomez
X.  ADJOURNMENT Chair Gomez

DIRECTION MAY BE GIVEN TO SEAGO STAFF ON ANY ITEM ON THE AGENDA.

17

22
23
25
27
29
37

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A

Individuals with disabilities who require special accommodations or who have limited English
proficiency and wish to have an interpreter may contact Diane Becerra at (520) 432-5301,

extension 207 at least 72 hours before the meeting time to request such accommodations.

Individuals wishing to participate in the meeting telephonically may do so by contacting Diane
Becerra at (520) 432-5301 extension 207. Contact must be made at least 48 hours before the
meeting in order to obtain the call-in information. Please note that the option to participate

telephonically may not be available unless requested as instructed above.

Si necesita acomodaciones especiales o un intérprete para esta conferencia, debe ponerse en
contacto con Diane Becerra al numero (520) 432-5301, extension 207, por lo menos setenta y dos

(72) horas antes de la conferencia.

SouthEastern Arizona Governments Organization - 1403 W. Highway 92, Bisbee, AZ 85603
520-432-5301 7% @ 432-5858 & ® www.seago.or


http://www.seago.org/

EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: SEAGO EXECUTIVE BOARD

FROM: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: ADMINISTRATIVE COUNCIL ATTENDANCE

This memorandum provides information about the number of Administrative Council members or
their delegates attending their May 2" 2024 meeting and the manner of their participation in said
meeting:

Member Entity Representative In-Person Electronic
Number of Administrative Council members present and voting: 3 10
Batty, Vernon — Town of Pima X
Bigman, Barney — San Carlos Apache Tribe X
Brown, Heath — Town of Thatcher (Vice-Chair) X
Coxworth, Dan — Cochise County (Treasurer) X
*Fulton, Stephanie — Town of Huachuca City X
Hinton, Terry — Town of Duncan
McLachlan, Matt — City of Sierra Vista
Pauken, Steve — City of Bisbee X
Rapier, Derek — Greenlee County (Secretary)
Robinson, Ron — Town of Patagonia (Chair)
Urquijo, Ana — City of Douglas

Vivian, Vicki — City of Benson

Welker, Dustin — Graham County

XX

XXX XX

Notes: *Stephanie Fulton stood in for Suzanne Harvey (Town of Huachuca City)

Attachments: None.

Action Requested: X Information Only [] Action Requested Below:

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 1



DRAFT MINUTES OF
THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEETING
10:00 A.M., FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2024
VIA ZOOM
SIERRA VISTA CITY HALL
1011 CORONADO DR. SIERRA VISTA, ARIZONA

OFFICERS PRESENT: Gomez, David — Greenlee County (Chair) (In-Person)
Maldonado, Jorge — City of Nogales (Treasurer) (Zoom)

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ahmann, Steve — Greenlee County Private Sector Representative (Zoom)
Barlow, Bill — City of Tombstone (In-Person)
Blake, Alex — Town of Duncan (In-Person)
Budd, David — Santa Cruz Private Sector Representative (Zoom)
David, Paul — Graham County (Zoom)
English, Ann — Cochise County (In-Person)
Floyd, Heather — Cochise County Private Sector Representative (In-Person)
Huish, Donald — City of Douglas (In-Person)
Lopez, Edmund — Graham County Private Sector Representative (In-Person)
Montoya, Luis — Town of Clifton (Zoom)
Nozie, Eugene — San Carlos Apache Tribe (Zoom)
Umphrey, Carolyn — City of Sierra Vista (In-Person)
Valle, Dan — Cochise County Private Sector Representative (In-Person)

STAFF PRESENT: Curtiss, Dina — Accounting Manager (In-Person)
Dennis, Keith — Executive Director (In-Person)
Miller, David — Community Coordinator (In-Person)
Vertrees, Chris — Transportation Program Manager (In-Person)

GUESTS: None
l. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / INTRODUCTIONS

Chair Gomez called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance. At
the request of the Chair, members were asked to introduce themselves.

Il. MEMBER ENTITIES’ DISCUSSION

Chair Gomez called on Supervisor Ann English for an update on Cochise County. Ms. English provided
an update on the Port of Entry in Douglas, reiterating that this project will also be updating the water
infrastructure from the Port to Highway 80. Chair Gomez called on Supervisor Paul David for an update
on Graham County. Mr. David announced that Graham County is currently working on several ADOT
projects. Chair Gomez recognized Councilman Luis Montoya from the Town of Clifton. Mr. Montoya
voiced several concerns is Town is having with ADOT. Mr. Montoya informed the Board that currently the
Town of Clifton is experiencing many difficulties with Highway 191, and that it would be extremely
inconvenient if this project was put on hold as it is the only road to Clifton. Mr. Montoya expressed gratitude
for SEAGO finding and obtaining the Town of Clifton with additional grant funds.

I1l. CALL TO THE PUBLIC
No members of the public were present.

IV. ACTION ITEMS

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 2



1. Consent Agenda
a. Approval of the November 17, 2023 Minutes

Chair Gomez called for a motion to approve the November 17, 2023 minutes.

MOTION: Ann English
SECOND: Heather Floyd
ACTION: Unanimous

2. Election of Officers

Keith Dennis presented to the Board the by-laws concerning the Election of Officers to the Executive Board.
SEAGQO's by-laws state a 4 County rotation of Officers, with Graham County due to be Chair this upcoming
year. However, Mayor Richard Ortega will be stepping down from SEAGO’s Executive Board and his
replacement has yet to be voted on by Safford City Council. Supervisor Ann English inquired if there was
another representative from Graham County on the Executive Board that would be eligible to become Chair
rather than Mayor Ortega’s replacement. Mr. Dennis confirmed that Graham County Supervisor Paul
David was on the Board and eligible for the position. Mr. David declined to become Chair due to previous
commitments. Mr. Dennis informed the Board that in this case the SEAGO by-laws do state that the 2™ Vice
Chair would be able to assume the position of Chair. Mayor Ken Budge who is currently 2" Vice Chair was
contacted to see if he would be interested in choosing this option. Mr. Budge indicated that due to multiple
professional and personal reasons that he would not be interested in becoming Chair. Mr. Dennis indicated
to the Board that SEAGOQO’s by-laws would also allow the current Chair to serve an additional term,
essentially keeping in place the current position of Officers. Supervisor David Gomez stated that he would
be willing to serve an additional term.

Chair Gomez called for a motion to approve the Election of Officers.

MOTION: Don Huish
SECOND: Carolyn Umphrey
ACTION: Unanimous

3. Discussion and possible action to approve Cochise County Private Sector Representatives to the
Executive Board

Keith Dennis gave a brief overview of SEAGO'’s by-laws concerning Private Sector Representatives. Mr.
Dennis stated that SEAGO is an Economic Development District, which requires one Private Sector
Representative per County, and in the case of Cochise County with a population over 100,000 two
representatives are required. Ms. Heather Floyd, who has served on the Board for one term, wishes to
continue for a second term. Mr. Dan Valle who has served two terms on the Board has recommended Mr.
Mark Mermis as his replacement on the Board. Councilman Bill Barlow commented that having the
recommendation of a previous Board member greatly contributes to his decision of approving new
members.

Chair Gomez called for a motion to appoint Mark Mermis as Cochise County Private Sector
Representative.

MOTION: Ann English
SECOND: Bill Barlow
ACTION: Unanimous
Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 3



V. INFORMATION ITEMS

A. Future Meeting Dates

Keith Dennis referenced the future dates of both the Administrative Council and Executive Board meetings.
Mr. Dennis also informed the Board that there will be a combined Administrative Council and Executive
Board Committee meeting April 4, 2024 to discuss time sensitive, program related business.

B. Quarterly Finance Report

Dina Curtiss informed the Board that SEAGO has just completed two years of zero-finding audits and
responded to questions. Supervisor Ann English asked if SEAGO was still using an outside CPA to assist
with audits. Ms. Curtiss replied that SEAGO did not use an outside firm this year.

C. Community Development Report

Keith Dennis provided an update on Community Development and responded to questions.

D. SEAGO Economic Development District Report

Keith Dennis provided an update on Economic Development and responded to questions. Supervisor Ann
English asked if it was possible to have an update from the Economic Advisory Council. Cochise County
PSR Heather Floyd gave a brief update on the State’s broadband initiative.

E. AAA Updates

Seana Riffle provided SEAGO AAA program updates and responded to questions. Supervisor Ann
English asked if services were combined in the entire region. Ms. Riffle confirmed that all four counties
have had services combined. Supervisor Paul David asked if SEAGO AAA has a sense if things are
getting more challenging for seniors. Ms. Riffle commented that there are quite a few challenges for seniors
and SEAGO is working on several options to help resolve these issues.

F.  Transportation Program Updates

Chis Vertrees provided Transportation Program updates and responded to questions. Tribal Councilman
David Noize inquired on what projects may be available for the San Carlos Apache Tribe. Mr. Vertress
referred to the RTAC priority list that is currently in budget session. Supervisor Paul David gave a brief
overview on the current RTAC priority list. Mayor Pro Tem Carolyn Umphrey shared that the RTAC
priority list has passed the House committee by a vote of 9 to 1.

VI. RTAC REPORT
Kevin Adam was not present.

VIl. STAFF ANNOUNCEMENTS / CURRENT EVENTS

Keith Dennis shared with the Board SEAGO’s Austerity Plan, which was adopted in 2014 in the event of a
government shutdown. Mr. Dennis reassured the Board that if there was a shutdown SEAGO would be
prepared if necessary.

Keith Dennis invited the Board to Open Meeting Law Training that SEAGO will be hosting at Cochise
College (Benson campus) on March 28 from 10am — 12pm.

Keith Dennis notified the Board of a previous item that was due to come back before them had been
cancelled. That item was for a Community Land Trust, which has since gone in another direction.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 4



Keith Dennis encouraged the Board to take a copy of SEAGO’s updated Policy and Principles brochure.

VIII.FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
Supervisor Ann English requested an Economic Advisory Council report.

Keith Dennis made the Board aware that SEAGO’s auditing firm will be giving a presentation at the next
Executive Board Meeting.

Keith Dennis will be preparing an update to the Board on SEAGO’s strategic plan.

AAA nominations have in the past been selected during the May Executive Board Meeting.
Santa Cruz County IGA pertaining to office rental for SEAGO AAA.

Elgin Elementary contract for Davis-Bacon monitoring.

Supervisor Paul David requested an update on Rural Water issues.

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION

1. The Board may vote to adjourn to Executive Session pursuant to A.R.S. 38.431.03 Subsection A.1. for
purposes of discussion of a possible retirement gift and/or cash bonus for SEAGO’s retired Executive
Director Randy Heiss, to include discussion of a specific gift to be determined in appreciation for over 14
years of service and leadership.

Executive Board entered into Executive Session at 11:45 a.m.

X. RE-CONVENE PUBLIC SESSION

Executive Board re-convened at 12:19 p.m.

1. Discussion and possible action relating to a retirement gift and/or cash bonus for SEAGO'’s past
Executive Director.

Tribal Councilman David Noize called for a motion that was seconded by Mr. Stephen Ahman to
suspend the rules pertaining to modifying the agenda. Chair Gomez recognized Cochise County PSR
Heather Floyd’s multiple calls for point of order. Ms. Floyd reminded the Board that this was already an
agenda item. Upon further discussion, it was recommended that SEAGO seek the advice of legal counsel.
No additional action was taken.

XIl. ADJOURMENT

Chair Gomez adjourned the meeting at 12:45 p.m.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 5



EXECUTIVE BOARD

SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

FROM: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: SUSTAINABILITY OF SEAGO’S FUND BALANCE

The purpose of this memorandum is to enable the Administrative Council and Executive Board to
better understand the uses of fund balance (if any) in prior years, the amount of fund balance
currently available, and to provide a projection of how long uses of fund balance may be sustained.
This information is intended to guide decisions as to how much of the fund balance should be used
in balancing the annual budget if or when such use is requested. The table below provides an
overview of the increases (or uses) of fund balance over the last fifteen fiscal years:

End of Year Fund Balances *
Fiscal Year Ending Beginning Balance Ending Balance Fund Balance
Surplus or (Use)
6/30/2009 $ 1,681,043 $ 1,921,455 $ 240,412
6/30/2010 $ 1,921,455 $1,877,819 ($ 43,636)
6/30/2011 (Restated ©) | $ 1,451,014 $ 1,297,124 ($ 153,890 °)
6/30/2012 $ 1,297,124 $ 1,298,000 $ 876
6/30/2013 $ 1,298,000 $1,136,413 ($ 161,587 9
6/30/2014 $1,136,413 $ 1,319,039 $ 182,626
6/30/2015 $ 1,319,039 $ 1,382,732 $ 63,693
6/30/2016 $ 1,382,732 $ 1,414,782 $ 32,050
6/30/2017 $ 1,414,782 $ 1,636,984 $ 222,202 °
6/30/2018 $ 1,636,984 $ 1,548,482 ($ 88,502 °)
6/30/2019 $ 1,548,482 $ 1,589,976 $ 41,494
6/30/2020 $ 1,589,976 $ 1,858,937 $ 268,961
6/30/2021 (Restated ) | $ 2,065,716 $ 2,121,522 $ 55,806
6/30/2022 $ 2,121,522 $ 2,122,490 $ 968
6/30/2023 $ 2,122,490 $ 2,273,516 $ 151,026

The fund balance policy established by the Executive Board on February 27, 2015 sets the
minimum unrestricted fund balance in the General Fund at 50% of the prior fiscal year's total
operating expenditures. In FY 2023, operating expenditures were $2,173,113. Fifty percent of FY
2023'’s operating expenditures is $1,086,557. The amount of fund balance available at the end of
FY 2023 ($2,273,516) amounts to approximately 209% of the minimum amount required by our fund

All figures are from audited financial statements for said years.

In FY 11, the Arizona Department of Housing eliminated SEAGO from the Save My Home Program and recovered $426,804 on deposit with
SEAGO so that this funding could be used for foreclosure prevention assistance in the State’s urbanized counties.

Approximately $152,000 of this amount was from the purchase of the SEAGO Highway 92 office building and associated property.
Due to expenditures for improvements to the SEAGO office building plus amounts approved for program use in the FY 13 budget.

FY 18 Legacy Foundation grant funds were received in May 2017 and posted as FY 17 revenues instead of deferred revenue for work to be
performed in FY 18. Actual FY 17 fund balance surplus would have been $22,202.

Had the Legacy Foundation funds received in FY 17 been posted as deferred revenue for use in FY 18, there would have been a fund balance

surplus of approximately $111,498 (see footnote 5 above).

Pursuant to Note 11 to the FY 2021 audited financial statements: “Beginning fund balance and net position, respectively, was increased by
206,779 to properly account for the understatement of accounts receivable in prior periods.”

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 6



balance policy ($1,086,557). Under this scenario, there would conceptually be $1,186,959 available
for use in future budget years before the minimum level of fund balance will be reached.

The table below provides an overview of how long it would take to reduce the existing fund balance
of $2,122,490 to $1,185,772 (the current minimum required) under a number of different deficit
spending scenarios:

Impact of Fund Balance Use

Annual Use of Fund Balance Number of Years
S 5,000 per year 237
S 10,000 per year 118
S 15,000 per year 79
S 20,000 per year 59
S 25,000 per year 47
S 30,000 per year 39
S 35,000 per year 34
S 40,000 per year 30
S 45,000 per year 26
S 50,000 per year 24

As shown in the table above, SEAGO would be able to operate for a considerable period of time
with moderate use of fund balance and still maintain an operating reserve of $1,086,557. However,
because almost all of SEAGO’s programs operate on a cost reimbursement basis, limited
unrestricted revenue is generated in a given year that can be used to cover any program deficits
that may occur. As a Council of Governments, SEAGO has no taxation authority. Apart from the
annual assessment charged to our member entities, CDBG project administration fees, and a few
limited programs within the AAA, SEAGO has no predictable source of unrestricted revenue.
Therefore, at this time, there is no use of fund balance that could be considered ‘sustainable’ in the
purest sense of the term.

As a result, SEAGO intends to adhere to the following guidelines to sustain the existing fund
balance for as long as possible:

1) Track the use of fund balance annually in order to monitor the level of fund balance available
for future years.

2) Present annual budgets that minimize the use of fund balance to the extent practicable.

3) Clearly identify any proposed use of fund balance in the annual budget approval process so
that the Administrative Council and Executive Board have the option to control the amount of
fund balance used.

4) Operate programs within their approved budgets and evaluate accordingly.

5) Continue seeking new grants and funding sources, and/or developing new programs and
services that generate revenue to replenish any fund balance used.

6) Expense depreciation of buildings and improvements to the benefiting programs and use
those funds to replenish fund balance that was used to purchase and improve these assets.

Attachments: None

Action Requested: X Information Only [ ] Action Requested Below:

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 7



EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

FROM: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2025 ASSESSMENTS

The proposed Assessment Schedule for Fiscal Year 2025 is attached for your review and
recommendation. And once again, we are proud to report that there are no anticipated
increases in the per capita amounts used to calculate the dues charged to SEAGO member
entities (see Column b).

We are not expecting changes to the EDA planning assessment (see Column c¢). This
assessment enables SEAGO to raise and commit matching funds required for our EDA
planning grant. If EDA notifies us of an increase in our match requirement, we may need to
choose whether to cover the increase with a one-time use of fund balance or update the
member entity assessments accordingly.

On March 25™ the RTAC Board approved the organization's FY 2025 budget leaving the
assessment unchanged from last fiscal year at 11.3 cents per capita (see Column d).

There are no changes impacting the total FY 2025 assessment (shown in Column e). Our
new five-year Strategic Plan calls for exploration of potential expanded services such as a
regional grants coordinator, grant search engine subscriptions, or reviving SEAGO’s
Housing Program to address the shortage of affordable housing choices across the region.
Some of these Strategic Plan Objectives mention “develop[ing] equitable Member Entity
assessments” in order to pay for these enhanced services. However, please note that staff
IS proposing no changes to the assessment schedule for the upcoming fiscal year. Should
staff propose such for FY 2026, and if such are approved by our Executive Board, additional
columns would be added to the assessment schedule as appropriate.

On Thursday, May 2, 2024 the Administrative Council voted unanimously to
recommend approval of this item to the Executive Board as presented by staff.

I'll do my best to answer any questions you may have at our meeting.

Attachments: FY 2025 Assessment Schedule.

Action Requested: [ ] Information Only X] Action Requested Below:
A motion to approve the SEAGO Fiscal Year 2025 Assessment Schedule.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 8



FY 2024 ASSESSMENT SCHEDULE

SouthEastern Arizona Governments Organization
Draft Dues and Assessment Schedule
Fiscal Year 2025

Members'
SEAGO Total FY2025| Percent of [Total FY2024
2020 Member | ED Planning RTAC Estimated |Total FY2025| SEAGO
CENSUS Dues Assessment | Assessment | Assessment | Assessment | Assessment
SEAGO Member (a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g8)

Benson 5,355 $1,457 $1,130 $220 $2,807 3.48% $2,807
Bisbee 4,923 $1,546 $1,038 $202 $2,787 3.45% $2,787
Douglas 16,534 $3,720 $3,488 $680 $7,888 9.78% $7,888
Huachuca City 1,626 $650 $343 $0 $993 1.23% $993
Sierra Vista 45,308 $3,398 $2,028 S0 $5,426 6.73% $5,426
Tombstone 1,308 $916 $276 $54 $1,245 1.54% $1,245
Willcox 3,213 $1,009 $678 $132 $1,819 2.25% $1,819
Cochise County* 47,180 $3,539 $7,690 $973 $12,202 15.13% $12,202
Pima 2,847 $894 $601 $117 $1,612 2.00% $1,612
Safford 10,129 $2,532 $2,137 $417 $5,085 6.30% $5,085
Thatcher 5,231 $1,424 $1,103 $215 $2,742 3.40% $2,742
San Carlos Apache Tribe 4,720 $1,482 $996 $194 $2,672 3.31% $2,672
Graham County* 15,606 $3,511 $3,292 $642 $7,445 9.23% $7,445
Clifton 3,933 $1,235 $830 $162 $2,226 2.76% $2,226
Duncan 694 $486 $146 $29 $661 0.82% $661
Greenlee County* 4,936 $1,550 $489 $203 $2,242 2.78% $2,242
Nogales 19,770 $4,448 $3,210 $813 $8,471 10.50% $8,471
Patagonia 804 $563 $170 $33 $765 0.95% $765
Santa Cruz County* 27,095 $4,742 $5,715 $1,114 $11,571 14.35% $11,571
SEAGO Region Totals 221,212 $39,101 $35,357 $6,200 $80,659 100.00% $80,659

*Unincorporated area only

Notes to Assessments:

(a) Calculations are based on the 2020 Census populations for each member entity. Census 2020 population figures will be used until the
mid-decade population estimates are available.

(b) In this column, SEAGO Member Dues are based on population blocks with the larger entities paying less per capita, and the smaller
entities who generally need more services paying more per capita. No change from FY2024.

(c) The assessment provides matching funds for the EDA planning grant and related economic development activities. Calculations are
based on a per capita rate, with entities who have economic development staff paying less per capita and the remaining entities paying
more. No change from FY 2024.

(d) RTAC assessment is based on the non-urbanized population of the region and the new rate of 11.3 cents per capita (increased from 9.8
CPC) as approved by the RTAC Board. Represents an increase of $1,556 over FY 2022.

(e) The total for this column will depend on any final adjustments to the calculations of individual program assessment columns and
decisions to use fund balance rather than assessments to cover anticipated expenses. However, no changes are anticipated for FY 2024.

(f) This column displays the percentage of the total FY 2025 assessment each member's assessment represents.
(g) Information is provided to compare total FY2025 to the total FY2024 assessment.

(h) Information is provided so comparisons can be drawn between total FY2025 assessment and total FY2010 assessment.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 9



EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

THROUGH: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FROM: DINA CURTISS, FINANCE MANAGER
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR 2025 BUDGET

The SEAGO Fiscal Year 2025 budget is attached for your review and consideration. The
assumptions used in developing the FY 2025 budget are as follows:

e SEAGO member assessments remain unchanged from FY 2024.

e Congress will continue funding current programs at or above current levels.

e A $150,000 contingency line item from the fund balance has been included in this
year’s budget for unanticipated expenses or events that may come up in FY 2025.
The Administrative and Executive Committees will be informed of the need to use
contingency funds as far in advance as possible.

The proposed FY 2025 budget worksheet provides a detailed overview of each program’s
budget. Program Managers have participated in the development of their program
budget(s), and successful budget implementation will depend on diligent monitoring of
revenue and expenditures by each Program Manager.

On Thursday, May 2, 2024 the Administrative Council voted unanimously to
recommend approval of this item to the Executive Board as presented by staff.

I will be happy to answer any questions you may have regarding the proposed budget at
our meeting.

Attachment: FY 2025 SEAGO Budget Worksheet
Action Requested: [ ] Information Only X Action Requested Below:

A motion to approve the SEAGO Fiscal Year 2025 Budget.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 10



SEAGsz':IZ::e::‘dget GF CA AR CDBG ED United Way AAA SPR RMM RMM TRNG 5311 BISBEE BUS NoFgrasles RPAP WIFA TOTAL
Revenue
AAA Revenue $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 182,940 | $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 182,940
Federal Funds - - - - - - - - - - - -
Federal Grant - - - - 91,800 69,500 - - - - 70,725 89,585 105,428 427,038
Federal thru State Funds - - - 30,000 - - 125,000 135,000 70,000 20,000 - 10,000 390,000
Assessment Funds - - 80,659 - - - - - - - - 80,659
State Respite - - - - - - - - - - - -
Senior Medicare Patrol - - - - - - 24,996 - - - - - - 24,996
State Funds - - - - - - - - - - - - -
State OMB - - - - - - 56,000 - - - - - - 56,000
MIPPA - - - - - - 6,152 - - - - - - 6,152
State Independent Living - - - - - - 78,150 - - - - - - 78,150
Interest - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Local Funds - - - 340,000 - - - - - - - - 340,000
In Kind Revenue - - - - - 10,700 45,000 31,250 23,750 17,500 - 4,275 5,415 6,373 144,263
Title 1l B - - - - - - 187,488 - - - - - - 187,488
Title 1l C-1/C-1 ADM - - - - - - 197,296 - - - - - - 197,296
Title 11l C-2 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Title Il D - - - - - - 26,161 - - - - - - 26,161
Title Il E ADM - - - - - - 21,402 - - - - - - 21,402
Title |1l E Caregiver - - - - - - 60,000 - - - - - - 60,000
SSBG Services 215,865 215,865
State Health Insurance - - - - - - 22,849 - - - - - - 22,849
State Direct Care Workers - - - - - - 95,195 - - - - - - 95,195
ARPA Funds 153,921 153,921
Unrealized Gain/Loss on Inv - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Assessment Transfer - - (35,357) - 35,357 - - - - - - - -
Transfer to/from fund balance 150,000 - - - - - - - - - - - 150,000
Total Revenue $ 150,000 | $ - $ 45,302 | $ 370,000 | $ 127,157 | $ 80,200 | $ 1,373,415 | $ 156,250 | $ 158,750 | $ 87,500 | $ 20,000 | $ 75,000 | $ 95,000 | $ 111,801 | $ 10,000 | § 2,860,375
Expenses
Salary/Wages $ - $ 118,670 | $ 20,488 | $ 120,728 | $ 43,808 | $ 4472 | $ 679,816 | $ 67,049 | $ 66,267 | $ 36,601 | $ 12,933 | § 45473 | § 47,909 | § 16,597 | § 2,593 | § 1,283,403
ERE - 43,496 7,129 44,400 16,613 1,538 260,971 24,207 23,562 14,259 4,197 9,593 10,630 6,361 1,002 467,959
Total Labor Expenses $ - $ 162,166 | $ 27617 | $ 165,128 | $ 60,421 | $ 6,010 | $ 940,788 | $ 91,256 | $ 89,829 | $ 50,860 | $ 17,129 | $ 55,065 | $ 58,540 | $ 22,958 | $ 3,595 | § 1,751,362
Operating Expenditures
Audit $ - $ 22,200 | $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 22,200
Contract Services - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Outside Services - 25,000 1,000 155,560 47,691 61,774 74,264 500 19,150 2,300 - 7,314 18,420 68,940 3,233 485,146
Depreciation - 6,000 - 1,600 650 8,300 650 - - - - - 17,200
Supplies - 6,000 2,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 15,000 500 1,321 - 651 1,000 1,500 2,128 672 33,772
Postage - 2,000 100 500 - - 500 - - - - - - 3,100
Copy - 500 100 500 200 - 3,900 300 200 200 - 5,900
Travel - 1,500 3,800 9,744 2,885 - 52,000 3,888 5,000 4,588 - - 3,500 8,000 2,500 97,405
Phone - 2,500 200 2,000 750 - 9,000 1,100 750 400 - 250 500 17,450
Internet Charges - 2,500 - 1,500 750 - 3,500 500 500 250 - 200 - 9,700
Utilities - 1,600 - 1,500 500 - 5,300 300 500 150 - 200 10,050
Equipment Maintenance - 500 - - - 500 - - - - - 1,000
Equipment Lease - - - - - - - - - - - -
Equipment Purchase - 18,500 - 500 - - 10,000 - - - - - 29,000
Advertising - - - 500 - 2,500 - 500 - - - - 3,500
Contingency 150,000 - - - - - - - - - - - 150,000
Dues/Subscriptions 500 7,478 1,000 1,500 20,000 13,000 2,000 250 - - - 45,728
Insurance - 3,500 - 1,500 500 - 5,200 500 800 1,600 - - - 13,600
Conferences/Workshops - 1,500 500 3,000 1,000 - 10,000 1,000 2,000 1,000 - - - 20,000
Total Operating Expenditures $ 150,000 | $ 94,300 | $ 15178 | $ 180,404 | $ 57,426 | $ 62,774 | $ 219,964 | $ 22,238 | $ 32,721 | $ 10,738 | $ 651 | $ 8,964 | § 23,920 | $ 79,068 | $ 6,405 | $ 964,751
Other
Indirect Costs Control $ - $ (256,466)| $ 2,507 | $ 24,469 | $ 9310 | $ 716 | $ 167,664 | $ 11,506 | $ 12,449 | § 8,403 | § 2220 | $ 6,696 | $ 7126 | $ 3,402 $ 0
In Kind Expenses - - - - - 10,700 45,000 31,250 23,750 17,500 - 4,275 5,415 6,373 144,263
Total Other $ - | (256,466)| $ 2507 |$ 24469 |8 9,310 | &y aciititie Board 3856kt 0543759094 36199 |$ 25903 |8  2220|$ 10971 ]$  12541]$ 9,775 | $ - ]899 144,263
Total Expenses $150,000 $0 $45,302 $370,000 $127,157 $80,200 $1,373,416| $156,250 $158,750 $87,500! $20,000 $75,000 $95,000! $111,801 $10,000! $2,860,375,

Balance | $0.00| s0| s0| s0| s0| s0| s0| s0| so| so| $0] $0] $0| s0| so| so|




EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD
THROUGH: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WILLIAM OSBORNE, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
FROM: MANAGER

DATE: May 10, 2024

SUBJECT: RFP FOR GRAHAM COUNTY HOUSING FEASIBILITY STUDY

Graham County Housing Feasibility Study

In February, SEAGO applied for a United Way of Graham and Greenlee Counties Cycle 1-
2024 grant for an actionable Graham County Housing Feasibility Study. The purpose of the
Study is to increase economic stability by providing a foundation for directed efforts to
increase housing development and affordability to support workforce retention and growth
in Graham County.

We are pleased to report that in March we were notified that our application was
successful. We therefore seek your recommendation of approval from our Executive Board
to procure a housing consultant to implement the study.

The need for housing solutions in the Gila Valley is great, yet there are currently no
planning documents to support such efforts. This housing study will close that gap.

On Thursday, May 2, 2024 the Administrative Council voted unanimously to
recommend approval of this item to the Executive Board as presented by staff.

Attachments: None
Action Requested: [] Information Only X] Action Requested Below

A motion to authorize the Executive Director to publish a request for proposals,
evaluate proposals received, and enter into a contract with a qualified consultant for
a Graham County Housing Feasibility Study as requested by staff.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 12



EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

THROUGH: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FROM: CELESTE VASQUEZ, AREA AGENCY ON AGING DIRECTOR
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: AAA REQUEST FOR APPLICATIONS

On April 1, 2024, the SEAGO AAA solicited applications from service providers for Congregate Meals,
Home Delivered Meals, Housekeeping, Attendant Care, Home Nursing, In-Home Respite, Legal
Assistance, Transportation, and Case Management. In order to give applicants sufficient time to develop
and submit their applications for AAA funding, the date set for closing of applications is set for April 26,
2024.

Subaward agreements developed pursuant to the Request for Applications (RFA) will be issued for Fiscal
Year 2025, with options to renew subawards for up to an additional four years, as expressed in the RFA.
Subaward renewals will be issued in subsequent fiscal years based on the recommendations developed by
staff and approved by the Administrative Council and Executive Board.

Based on the initial funding levels available from the Arizona Department of Economic Security (ADES) for
the AAA services listed above, we have developed the attached AAA funding levels by county area and
subaward recommendations for Fiscal Year 2025. It's important to remember that these are only the initial
funding levels and they may be increased, or decreased based on subaward negotiations and alerts from
ADES.

On Thursday, May 2, 2024 the Administrative Council voted unanimously to recommend approval
of this item to the Executive Board as presented by staff.

Attachments: Fiscal Year 2025 Provisional Subaward Recommendations

Action Requested: [ ] Information Only X Action Requested Below:

A motion to approve the provisional Fiscal Year 2025 AAA subaward recommendations.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 13



SEAGO AAA Fiscal Year 2025 Subaward Recommendations

Case Management

Available Funding All Counties:

S 397,434.00

Provider

Service

Service Area

Contract Amount

Cochise County

Cochise Health and Social Services

Case Management

|Cochise County - All

| $  198,717.00

Graham County

Southeastern Arizona Community Unique
Services

Case Management

Graham County - All

S 49,679.00

Greenlee County

Greenlee County Health Department

|Case Management

|Green|ee County - All

| s 49,679.00

Santa Cruz County

Santa Cruz County Public Fiduciary

|Case Management

|Santa Cruz County - All

| s 99,359.00

Home Care Cluster

Available Funding All Counties: $ 979,935.00
Cochise: $ 473,937.00
Graham: S 144,021.00
Greenlee: S 64,876.00
Santa Cruz: S 297,101.00
Provider Service Service Area Contract Amount
Cochise County
Accent Care Housekeeping Cochise County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Lutheran Social Services Housekeeping Cochise County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Graham County
Accent Care Housekeeping Graham County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Southeastern Arizona Community Unique
Services Housekeeping Graham County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Greenlee County
Accent Care Housekeeping Greenlee County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Greenlee County Health Department Housekeeping Greenlee County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Home Nursing TBD
Santa Cruz County
Accent Care Housekeeping Santa Cruz County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 14




Home Care Cluster (continued)

Provider Service Service Area Contract Amount
Consumer Direct Housekeeping Santa Cruz County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Lutheran Social Services Housekeeping Santa Cruz County - All TBD
Attendant Care TBD
In-home Respite TBD
Meals Programs
Available Funding All Counties: $ 903,766.33
Cochise: S 361,506.00
Graham: S 262,092.00
Greenlee: S 144,603.00
Santa Cruz: $ 135,565.33
Provider Service Service Area Contract Amount
Cochise County
City of Tombstone Congregate Meals Tombstone TBD
Douglas ARC Congregate Meals Douglas TBD
Southeastern Cochise
Home Delivered Meals |County TBD
Mom's Meals HDM Lotto Funds Benson, Sierra Vista TBD
Home Delivered Meals [Rural Cochise County TBD
Graham County
Mom's Meals Home Delivered Meals |Rural Graham County TBD
Southeastern Arizona Community Unique
Services Congregate Meals Safford TBD
HDM-Lotto Funds Graham TBD
Home Delivered Meals [Graham TBD
Greenlee County
Mom's Meals Home Delivered Meals [Rural Greenlee County TBD
Southeastern Arizona Community Unique
Services Congregate Meals Clifton and Duncan TBD
HDM-Lotto Funds Greenlee TBD
Home Delivered Meals |Greenlee TBD
Santa Cruz County
Mom's Meals Home Delivered Meals
Rural Santa Cruz County TBD
Santa Cruz Council on Aging Congregate Meals Nogales TBD
Senior Citizens of Patagonia Congregate Meals Patagonia TBD
Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 15




Transportation

Available Funding All Counties:
Cochise:
Graham:

Greenlee:
Santa Cruz:

$
S
S
S
s

193,137.00
117,814.00
25,108.00
50,215.00

Provider

Service

Service Area

Contract Amount

Cochise County

City of Benson Transportation Benson Area TBD
City of Bisbee Transportation Bisbee Area TBD
City of Douglas Transportation Douglas TBD
Volunteer Interfaith Caregiver Program
(VICAP) Transportation Cochise TBD
Graham County
Easter Seals Blake Foundation Transportation |Graham County TBD
Greenlee County
Easter Seals Blake Foundation Transportation Greenlee - Clifton TBD
Greenlee - Duncan TBD

Other Services

Available Funding All Counties:

s

Provider

Service

Service Area

Contract Amount

Southern Arizona Legal Aid

Legal Counseling

Cochise, Graham,
Greenlee and Santa Cruz
Counties

TBD

Unobligated Funds

Available Funding All Counties:

$

23,000.00

Provider

Service

Service Area

Contract Amount

SEAGO AAA

Caregiver Outreach

Cochise, Graham,
Greenlee and Santa Cruz
Counties

TBD

Caregiver Training

Cochise, Graham,
Greenlee and Santa Cruz
Counties

TBD

Adaptive Aids

Cochise, Graham,
Greenlee and Santa Cruz
Counties

TBD

Caregiver Home Repair

Cochise, Graham,
Greenlee and Santa Cruz
Counties

TBD

Grand Total - All $

2,474,272.33

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024




EXECUTIVE BOARD

PACKET
SEAGO

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

FROM: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: RETIREMENT BONUS FOR SEAGO’S FORMER EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

As you are aware, SEAGO'’s former Executive Director, Mr. Randy Heiss, retired in January of this
year after over 14 years in that role.

Prior to Mr. Heiss’ retirement, members of SEAGO’s Executive Board asked staff to explore the
possibility of making a one-time payment to Mr. Heiss in recognition of his service to the SEAGO
region.

Initial research including consultations with our auditors indicated that such a payment would be
allowable, and staff brought the item forward for action at the February Executive Board meeting.
The item was discussed in Executive Session; upon re-convening into open session the Board
directed staff to obtain a legal opinion on the matter, and no action was taken.

The requested legal opinion is attached to this memorandum, and indicates that awarding such a
payment would be not be advisable and may violate the gift clause of the Arizona Constitution. With
this legal opinion the Board can decide whether or not to authorize such award and, if so, in what
amount.

When the Executive Board first considered this at the February 23, 2024 meeting, Mr. Heiss was
under a Temporary Employment Agreement with SEAGO for IT services on an as-needed basis.
This made it possible for the Board to discuss this item in Executive Session. That contract is no
longer in effect, which means consideration via Executive Session is not an option.

If the Executive Board decides to award a one-time payment to Mr. Heiss, the funds for such would
be drawn from SEAGO’s FY2024 contingency funds.

Staff will look forward to answering any questions the Board may have in considering this item.

Attachments: 1) Legal Opinion from SEAGO Attorney; 2) Opinion from SEAGO auditors

Action Requested: [ ] Information Only X] Action Requested Below:

A motion to authorize a one-time payment to retired Executive Director Mr. Randy Heiss in
recognition of his service to the SEAGO Region.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 17



MEMORANDUM

TO: Keith Dennis, Executive Director
FROM: Michael Massee, SEAGO Attorney

RE: Payment of a Post-Employment Bonus

DATE: May9, 2024

Issue: Does the Executive Board have the discretion to award a one-time bonus to
the prior Executive Director/Board Secretary in recognition of his long-term
successful leadership of the organization?

Short Answer: Because SEAGO would not receive current value by paying a
bonus for past performance, and because the former Executive Director’s contract
does not contemplate the payment of a post-employment bonus, payment of such a
bonus would violate the gift clause of the Arizona constitution.

Analysis

SouthEastern Arizona Governments Organization was formed in 1972 pursuant to
an intergovernmental agreement contemplated Executive Order No. 70-2, which
was itself in response to the federal Intergovernmental Cooperation Act of 1968
that sought to reduce the number of entities the federal government had to interact
with for routine grants. Pursuant to a 1975 resolution of the Executive Board,
SEAGO was incorporated as a non-profit corporation in 1976.

SEAGO’s Articles of Incorporation state that the board of directors shall be
authorized to “[a]ppoint such officers and agents as the purposes of the corporation
shall require and to pay them suitable compensation.” Article IV(C). Pursuant to
the most recently adopted bylaws, the Executive Board has the following powers:
(1) to formulate policies; (2) to adopt budgets; and (3) to employ and dismiss the
Executive Director. SEAGO Bylaws of 2021 Article VI(B)(1), (2) and (4).
Subsection (3) is a broad grant of authority: “Approving or rejecting or deferring
action on any matter its members determine to be properly within their purview.”

However, article IX section 7 of the Arizona constitution (the “gift clause”)

restricts the State, cities, counties, towns, municipalities or other “subdivisions of
the state” from “gifting” public funds unless it is for a public purpose and the

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 18



government receives roughly proportional value. Schires v. Carlat, 250 Ariz. 371,
374 9 7 (2021). Although SEAGQO’s non-profit corporate status was not created
directly by an intergovernmental agreement, nevertheless a gift clause analysis of
the contemplated expenditure should serve as persuasive guidance here. Cf. A.R.S.
§ 11-952.02(B)(1) (a separate legal entity formed by an intergovernmental
agreement pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952 is a “political subdivision of this state,”
provided that the agreement includes an intent to form a separate legal entity
pursuant to that subsection). Thus, had the 1972 intergovernmental agreement
included a statement of specific intent to form a separate legal entity, SEAGO
would clearly fall within the statute’s definition of a political subdivision of the
state, and therefore clearly within the regulatory ambit of the gift clause. The mere
lack of expressed intent in the 1972 intergovernmental agreement to form a
separate legal entity seems an insufficient basis to conclude that the gift clause
does not apply to SEAGO expenditures.

Expenditures of public funds withstand gift clause scrutiny where the expenditure
is for a public purpose and the expense does not greatly exceed the value of the
services received. Schires, supra; Gilmore v. Gallego, 529 P.2d 562, 571 9 25
(App. 2023). In Gilmore, the court upheld a collective bargaining agreement that
included a provision requiring the City of Phoenix to pay “release time,” when
certain employees worked on union activities but remained on the clock. The
Gilmore court relied on a previous Arizona Supreme Court case, Cheatham v.
DiCicco, 240 Ariz. 314 (2016) to find a public purpose, even though in Cheatham,
the court relied on testimony that established that without the release time
provision, the union would have required higher employee salaries.  Although
acknowledging this distinction, the Gilmore court nevertheless followed
Cheatham’s rationale that a collective bargaining agreement was not a mere
“exchange of discrete promises” but rather a “long term relational contract
governing the whole employment relationship.” Cheatham at 322 9 30.

Following these precedents, a reviewing court would likely find a legitimate public
purpose in providing a long-serving and successful executive director with a post-
employment bonus. Although likely meeting the first prong, such an expenditure
runs afoul of the second prong of the gift clause analysis: that the public entity
receives a direct benefit from the expenditure. “Anticipated indirect benefits™ are
not considered, but rather a court looks at the fair market value of the contracting
party’s “promised performance.” Gilmore at 572 § 30. Here, the contract with the
former Executive Director has expired and thus there can be no “promised
performance.” Past performance already received and paid for pursuant to an
expired contract does not appear to meet the requirement that valuable services

will be “promised.”

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 19



While I conclude that a material bonus devoid of any future promised performance
cannot be paid, even to an otherwise deserving former Executive Director, the
critical void could be filled here by making a new contract, such as for consulting
services, that includes promised future performance. Should there be a new
contract, the amount paid for future services survives legal scrutiny so long as the
compensation paid does not “far exceed” the objective value of the services
provided. Gilmore at 572 9 31.

Conclusion

While a recent compensation study shows that the former Executive Director has
been significantly undercompensated when compared to his peers, and while the
desire to address this past shortfall via a reasonable but meaningful post-
employment bonus is laudable, nevertheless the second prong of the gift clause
analysis requires that the governmental entity receive “promised performance” in
exchange for a material expenditure of funds. Therefore, my conclusion is that
there must be a promise for future valuable services that satisfies the gift clause of
the Arizona constitution before SEAGO can make additional compensation
available to the former Executive Director.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 20



Dina Curtiss

From: Jim Usevitch <jimu@colbypowell.com>
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2024 8:59 AM

To: Dina Curtiss

Subject: RE: Retirement Bonus

Hi Dina,

As long as it is approved by the board and it comes from the unrestricted you should be fine.
Jim

James S Usevitch

Colby & Powell, PLC

1535 W. Harvard Avenue, Suite 101
Gilbert AZ 85233

Tel:(480)635-3200

Fax:(480)635-3201

This message and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may contain confidential or privileged information. If
you are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, use, or distribution of the information included in the message and any
attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify us by reply email and immediately
and permanently delete this message and any attachments. Thank you.

From: Dina Curtiss <dcurtiss@seago.org>
Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2024 8:16 AM
To: Jim Usevitch <jimu@colbypowell.com>
Subject: Retirement Bonus

Importance: High

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Good Morning Jim,

A few people from the Executive Board suggested a retirement bonus for Randy. Can any of the unrestricted
general fund be used for severance or bonuses, and if so, under what circumstances?

Regards,

Dlna Curtiss

Accounting Manager

SouthEastern Arizona Governments Organization
Area Agency on Aging

1403 W. Highway 92

Bisbee, AZ 85603

(520) 432-5301 ext 204

(520) 456-7235 cell

Executive Board Il'acket 05.17.2024 21



EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

FROM: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: FUTURE MEETING DATES

The Administrative Council normally meets at 9:00 a.m. on the first Thursday of February,
May, August and November at the Cochise College Benson Center, located at 1025
Highway 90 in Benson, Arizona. The Executive Board normally meets at 10:00 a.m. on the
Fridays two weeks following the Administrative Council meetings unless there is a holiday,
or unless the Board sets an alternative date. The location of each Executive Board meeting
is determined by the jurisdiction hosting the meeting, and therefore varies.

Administrative Council Executive Board
May 2, 2024 May 17, 2024 - Graham County
August 1, 2024 August 16, 2024 - Greenlee County
November 7, 2024 November 22, 2024 - Santa Cruz County
February 6, 2025 February 21, 2025 - Cochise County

Also, below please find the tentative schedule for our combined telephonic Administrative
and Executive Committee meetings in the upcoming 12 months:

Combined Administrative and Executive Committee Meetings (telephonic)
April 4, 2024 — 9:00 a.m.
May 30, 2024 — 9:00 a.m.
October 3, 2024 — 9:00 a.m.
December 5, 2024 — 9:00 a.m.

Attachments: None.

Action Requested: X Information Only [ ] Action Requested Below:

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 22



EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

THROUGH: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FROM: DINA CURTISS, FINANCE MANAGER
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: FINANCE REPORT

The SEAGO Statement of Revenues and Expenditures for the quarter ending March 31,
2024 is attached for your review.

I will be happy to answer any questions you may have regarding the Statement of
Revenues and Expenditures at our meeting.

Attachment: Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, Quarter Ending 03/31/2024

Action Requested: X Information Only [] Action Requested Below

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 23



SEAGO
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - R&E that ties to Budget - Unposted Transactions Included In Report
From 1/1/2024 Through 3/31/2024
(In Whole Numbers)

Cur Pd Actual YTD Actual Total Budget % of Budget Used
Revenue
General Fund 101 20,526 73,146 150,000 48.76%
Agency Response 301 0 80,111 45,302 176.83%
Community Development Block Grant 302 19,500 70,885 233,000 30.42%
Economic Development 303 18,750 56,798 110,358 51.46%
Public Transit 308 3,673 17,983 20,000 89.91%
State Planning & Research 309 21,741 99,771 143,250 69.64%
Area Agency on Aging 310 279,046 892,192 1,958,980 45.54%
Regional Mobility Management 311 35,775 90,166 168,750 53.43%
RMM Training 314 21,664 32,711 87,500 37.38%
FTA Access and Mobility Partnership 333 19,675 175,784 192,000 91.55%
Regionwide Pavement Assessment Project 347 27,786 83,053 198,554 41.82%
Nogales Area Transit Feasibility Study 359 16,824 22,345 ' 95,000 23.52%
Total Revenue 484,950 1,694,945 3,402,694 49.81%
Expenses
General Fund 101 4,165 4,185 150,000 2.78%
Agency Response 301 8,012 29,466 45,302 65.04%
Community Development Block Grant 302 45,698 142,535 233,000 61.17%
Economic Development 303 24,816 59,317 110,358 53.74%
Public Transit 308 3,673 17,983 20,000 89.91%
State Planning & Research 309 21,7141 99,771 143,250 69.64%
Area Agency on Aging 310 278,183 883,717 1,958,980 45.11%
Regional Mobility Management N 35,775 90,166 168,760 53.43%
RMM Training 314 21,654 32,711 87,500 37.38%
FTA Access and Mobility Partnership 333 19,675 175,784 192,000 91.55%
Regionwide Pavement Assessment Project 347 27,786 83,053 198,554 41.82%
Nogales Area Transit Feasibility Study 351 16,824 22,345 95,000 23.52%
Total Expenses 508,002 1,641,032 3,402,694 48.23%
Balance (23,052) 53,913 0 0.00%
Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 24

Date: 4/24/24 08:08:34 AM Page: 1




EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD
THROUGH: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WILLIAM OSBORNE, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM
FROM: MANAGER

DATE: May 10, 2024

SUBJECT: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM UPDATES

CDBG Regional Account Updates

We are pleased to report the public participation portion of the CDBG Regional Account
cycle is nearly complete. Bisbee Duncan, Patagonia and Thatcher will be awarded this
year; final award amounts are due to be announced later this Spring. We will provide
updates as this information becomes available. We will be bringing an action item for
approval of Technical Assistance Contracts this fall once all applications are submitted.

The 2025 Regional Account CDBG cycle awardees will be Clifton, Graham County, Santa
Cruz County and Tombstone. It is never too early to begin exploring potential project ideas
and planning for the next CDBG round. SEAGO Community Development stands ready to
assist our member communities in these efforts.

Colonias Set- Aside CDBG

We expect the Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH) to announce the Colonias Set-
Aside Account CDBG competitive funding round later this year. As part of the public
participation cycle mentioned above, Duncan and Patagonia chose projects for this round.
Bisbee is expected to select a Colonias project at its upcoming public hearing.

If your community is interested in applying for Colonias Set-Aside CDBG funding this year,
or in 2026, please reach out to us for assistance. Remember, such applications must be
“shovel ready,” defined here as including 100% design plans, a complete Environmental
Review Record, a bidders list, and approved permits where applicable. Owner Occupied
Housing Rehabilitation (OOHR) applications need not include plans, but do require a list of
properties to be improved along with a waiting list of income-qualified households ready to
benefit from these funds.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 25



Better Cities Resilience Action Planning & Freeport McMoRan

In April, Community Development staff met with Freeport-McMoRan’s Community
Development and Social Responsibility team in Morenci to discuss the status and progress
on the Greenlee County Resilience Action Plan (October 2023). SEAGO has been asked
to help facilitate a regional housing conference for our members, ideally within the next
year, to highlight the progress and impacts being made in Graham and Greenlee Counties
from their housing feasibility studies. Prior to this, it was agreed that progress needs to be
made on infrastructure needs assessments, blight reduction strategies, and assessments
of the challenges and impacts of local plans and regulations on housing development,
rehabilitation and affordability. SEAGO Community Development is grateful for the
opportunity to participate in these efforts.

Elgin School Remodel

Santa Cruz County is administering an Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief (ESSER III) grant funded by the U.S. Department of Education for remodeling of the
Elgin School in Sonoita. On April 4™ our Administrative-Executive Committee approved a
Technical Assistance Contract for Fair Labor Standards Act / Davis Bacon Act monitoring.
We are pleased to be part of the team implementing much needed improvements to this
school.

Strategic Plan Updates (Housing)

Bisbee’s Owner-Occupied Housing Rehabilitation (OOHR) Program has begun actively
fixing properties in the Saginaw Colonia, and anticipates another round of procurement to
continue these efforts for other qualified-applicant properties in this area of significant
need. We have learned much in developing this program for Bisbee, and are ready to use
what we’ve learned on a more regional scale, as prescribed by Goal 1, Objective 1-B(ii).
The Town of Duncan chose to use this year's Regional Account CDBG for OOHR, and this
will give us a chance to do just that.

Finally, the addition of an AICP planner with considerable, recent experience in land use,
zoning and planning to our Community Development team gives us in-house capabilities to
deliver on Goal 1, Objective 1-A (“Provide Housing Land Use TA to Member Entities).

Attachments: None

Action Requested: X] Information Only [] Action Requested Below

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 26



EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

THROUGH: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FROM: ROBIN DUMAS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNER II
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM UPDATES

CEDS and Economic Advisory Council Update

During this quarter the Economic Advisory Council (EAC) resumed its meetings, this time
at an increased pace. The focus of these meetings was to update our Comprehensive
Economic Development Strategy (CEDS), namely the Project Priority list. We are on track
to deliver the updated CEDS to the Economic Development Administration (EDA) by the
end of April. In the first quarter of next year we will engage in a full re-write of the CEDS to
make it into a shorter, more targeted and practical document intended to better support the
economic development efforts of our Member Entities.

Meanwhile our EAC Meetings are going to be moved back to a Quarterly meeting format
with member updates, guest speakers and networking. As part of our EDA scope of work,
this summer we will also begin a series of trainings and workshops. These sessions will
occur between the quarterly EAC meetings, and will be geared towards the CEDS’ focus
areas as well as the feedback and suggestions we receive from participants. We therefore
welcome any recommendations our communities have as to the content of such
workshops.

Brownfield Assessment Grant

At our August 2023 meeting, SEAGO’s Executive Board authorized staff to procure and
enter into a contract with a consultant to implement the grant. We received five good
proposals, and we intend to award the contract to Stantec, Inc. in May. Special thanks to
staff from our Member Entities for assisting us in scoring the proposals. SEAGO staff
attended a Brownfield workshop in Willcox on April 23™. We are excited to get started in
implementing this grant.

Rural Energy for America Technical Assistance Grant
SEAGO'’s Executive Board also authorized staff last August to procure and contract with a

consultant to implement this grant. We received one proposal from Venture Catalyst, Inc.
We intend to award the contract to this company and begin implementation in May.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 27



Recompete: Santa Cruz County and EDA

Santa Cruz County was named a finalist in a nationwide competition for an EDA-funded
program called Recompete. The goal of this program is to take a comprehensive approach
to closing the prime age employment gap along the 1-19 corridor from Nogales to South
Tucson. The County was awarded a $500,000 grant to help in developing the final
proposal. Santa Cruz is one of 22 finalists of which eight are expected to be awarded. In
the last quarter, SEAGQO’s Economic Development, Transportation and Area Agency on
Aging helped in developing the final proposal, attending workshops, developing proposals
and budgets for needed components, providing a letter of support, and helped bring the
proposal into harmony with our CEDS through an amendment to the County’s entries on
our project Priority list. If successful the County and its partners stand to be awarded some
$50 million. We are proud to be a partner in this effort and will report back on what we
hope is a successful proposal.

Willcox Theater and Arts

We are pleased to report the Willcox Theater and Arts improvements are about to begin.
Dr. Gayle Berry, Executive Director of WTA spoke about the project at our last EAC
meeting. A groundbreaking ceremony took place on Friday, May 10™. This is an EDA
funded project and SEAGO was instrumental in securing funding by providing WTA with an
Environmental Review Record which was included in their funding application. SEAGO has
assisted with procurement and once construction begins we will provide assistance with
Fair Labor Standards Act compliance.

Strategic Plan Updates

Notable progress on SEAGO Strategic Plan objectives for this quarter include
implementation of our Brownfield Assessment Grant (Goal 1, Objective 2.C). Staff has also
made efforts to build the regional “incubator coalition” prescribed in Goal 1, Objective 4-

A(i). Staff recently joined the Arizona Association for Economic Development (AAED) and
attended their annual conference in Lake Havasu City.

Attachments: None

Action Requested: X Information Only [ ] Action Requested Below

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 28



EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

THROUGH: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FROM: CELESTE VASQUEZ, AREA AGENCY ON AGING DIRECTOR
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: AAA PROGRAM & AREA PLAN UPDATES

Administrative:

Since February, we were actively recruiting for two case manager positions. The vacancies being
recruited for were for Benson/Willcox and Sierra Vista. These vacancies were a result of a case manager
resignation and an internal promotion for Seana Riffle, our Case Manager Coordinator who has taken on
the Family Caregiver Support Program after Karen Enriquez’s retirement in early February. We are very
thankful to Shirley Thomas who has assisted Seana with the case load and in-person visits, and
Ramona MacMurtrie and Yolanda Thomas who have assisted with the case management phone calls
during this time.

Older Americans Act:

On February 6, 2024, the Administration for Community Living (ACL) released a final rule to update
regulations for implementing its Older Americans Act (OAA) programs. This is the first substantial update
to most OAA program regulations since 1988. The key provisions of the 2024 OAA Final Rule reinforce
and clarify policies and expectations, provide guidance for programs authorized since the last update,
promote appropriate stewardship of OAA resources, and incorporate lessons learned during the COVID-
19 pandemic.

| have and will continue to attend several state driven task forces to discuss, advocate for and assist in

revision of the State of Arizona policies and procedures to meet the requirement of full implementation of
the changes by October 1, 2025.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 29



Information and Referral:

Below you will find the current breakdown of the client communications methods utilized by our
Information and Referral (I&R) team. Telephone inquiries continue to be the most utilized. Although since
State Fiscal Year 2021-2022, we have experienced a significant decrease in incoming calls. In addition
to this information, you will also find the breakdown by types of callers, with persons over the age of 60
being the highest rate of callers at 42%.

Top 3 Ways I&R Received I&R Calls Per SFY
1,531
o e e - . -
8903
I
Phone Email In-Person SFY SFY SFY
63.6% 27.6% 1% 19-20 2122 2223 23-M4
THE BREAKDDWN
Phone Email In-Person
9.4 By
'."J_T%'i-“j% 26.9% 26.6% -
1.9%
1.6% pgoyep L5% 0.3% 0.3 1%
1

19-20 20-21 21-x2 22-33 23-24

Agency/Professional

0.7 %

4.7% 53% 6%

19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24

[ | I
19-20 20-21 21-22 23-23 23-24

Types of Callers

Person over 60

LT

15-20 20-21 21-23 F¥-23 33-24

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024

I
159-20 20-21 21-23 ZF-23 23-24

Caregiver/Family
Member

15.T%

AET% %1% 35%

19-20 20-21 21-22 2323 23-24

30



Case Management:

UPDATE

= SEAGO AAA serves 705 clients in case management for home and community-based services. We
have 7 case managers. 5 in-house and 2 subcontractors, as well as a Case manager coordinator.

= All Previously open positions have been filled. 2 new Case managers are starting on April 15th for
Benscn and Sierra Vista.

« Central intake has an excellent referral response time range from 1-2 business days. It continues to
be the hub for connecting residents in Region 6 to additional community resources.

Total Monthly Case Load

1,000 —

ann — 861
800 — 730 738 752 769 746
700 —
600 —
500 —
400 —
300 —
200 —
100 —
['] —

W X 1 g
lanﬁa‘%e‘mﬁm Ware et e gue W p\u‘}‘gﬁmﬁ‘mﬁ gc.\"ngme

705

“"“g;c o€t 35'1\“5‘1% ghtﬁaﬁ W,-;q;‘n
Cochise County
372 Clients
55%

Santa Cruz County 705 Graham County
144 Clients Case Managed 131 Clients

18% Clients 16%

Greenlee County
56 Clients
1%

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 31



Waitlist

< ATT HDM O HSK -O RSP -0 TOTAL

)

WAITLIST

* SEAGO AAA has a significant waitlist with 159 clients currently on it. The region has
already exhausted its ARPA and COVID Funds and is now relying on Base funding.

* The case managers have reduced the authorized units of services and closed services on
clients who no longer qualify or have other resources. This process will help us
determine the availability of services and start reducing the waitlist.

» As of April, the first case managers are operating under open-one, close-one procedures.

Older Americans Month:

Every year, the Administration for Community Living leads the nation’s observance of Older Americans
Month (OAM) in May. The theme for 2024 is Powered by Connection, which recognizes the profound
impact that meaningful relationships and social connections have on our health and well-being. We will
explore the vital role that connectedness plays in supporting independence and aging in the place by
combatting isolation, loneliness and other issues. The SEAGO — Area Agency on Aging (AAA) will
celebrate individuals who continue to make a positive impact in their communities by volunteering their
time and love to others. The opportunity to nominate our heroes in the communities was presented, and
those selected by an assigned committee, which excluded AAA staff, will be given public recognition
during the month of May at the following locations:

e Cochise County:
0 Tombstone Senior Center — Friday, May 3, 2024 from 11:30 am to 1:00 pm
o Douglas Senior Center ARC — Monday, May 13, 2024 from 1:00 pm to 2:30 pm

e Graham County:
o Safford Senior Citizen Center — Tuesday, May 7, 2024 from 10:00 am to 11:30 am

e Greenlee County:
o0 Clifton Senior Center — Wednesday, May 8, 2024 from 8:30 am to 10:00 am
0 Duncan Senior Center — Wednesday, May 8, 2024 from 11:00 am to 12:30 pm

e Santa Cruz County:

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 32



0 Santa Cruz Council on Aging — Thursday, May 23, 2024 from 11:00 am to 12:30 pm
o0 Senior Citizens of Patagonia — Friday, May 31, 2024 from 12:00 pm to 1:30 pm

Request for Applications:

Every five years, we are required to go through the process of Request for Applications (RFA) for the
services provided through the AAA programs. This allows current providers to reapply and make rate
adjustments as well as new providers the opportunity to apply for subawards. We have begun the RFA
process for State Fiscal Year 2025. The Tentative RFA Timeline is as follows:

RFA Opens 4/1/2024

Pre-Application Conference 4/5/2024 9:30am - 12:00pm
RFA Closes 4/26/2024

Deadline for receipt of UPLOADED Applications 4/26/2024 5:00 pm

Review of Competing Applications by Committee 4/30/2024 - 5/1/2024

Notice of Intent to Award and Rejection Letters to Prospective Applicants 5/3/2024

Recommendations made to SEAGO Executive Board 5/17/2024

Subaward Negotiations 5/20/2024 - 5/31/2024
Award Letters sent to Providers 6/3/2024

Subaward Agreement Distribution 6/3/2024 - 6/15/2024
Agreement Returned to SEAGO AAA for final review/execution 6/25/2024

Services Begin 7/1/2024

AREA PLAN ON AGING SECOND QUARTER UPDATE

Description:

The SFY24/28 Area Plan on Aging focuses on Five Goals, 15 Objectives, and 44 Action steps in
meeting the outcome for these four years. In this process, the ACOA will receive quarterly updates on a
few accomplishments each program coordinator and AAA Admin is working towards achieving. In your
packet, you will find a brief update from each program that highlights at least three action steps toward
meeting the goal and its objective. The overall goal is that you are given enough information to help you
understand that the AAA is moving in the right direction. At the end of the fiscal year, we will provide you
with the entire AP template showing each area for the year. You will have the opportunity to comment and
request changes for the following year if needed.

A summary of the following program updates are as follows:

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 33



Health Promotion and Disease Prevention Program

1.2.B - 1.2.C: HPR Coordinator continues to meet with partners of AAA and is always looking for
new volunteers for A Matter of Balance and Tai Chi classes. There is a very positive response to
become Tai Chi instructors and HPR Coordinator is working with a Tai Chi Master Trainer in
Tucson to expand the program in Southern Arizona. HPR Coordinator attended a training in March
and has received her certification as a Tai Chi instructor and continues to acquire needed
certifications required for the position. HPR Coordinator has two (2) new qualified volunteers, this
makes a total of seven (7) volunteers for this program. HPR Coordinator is in the process of
signing on four (4) more volunteers.

2.1.C: HPR Coordinator currently has one A Matter of Balance class in Bisbee and another being
planned for Duncan. Tai Chi classes will resume in April in Nogales and will run through the
summer. There has been a pause in Tai Chi classes in Santa Cruz County as one of the instructors
was out with a hip replacement. HPR Coordinator is currently trying to recruit a Spanish speaking
Tai Chi instructor in Nogales.

3.1.B: HPR Coordinator is working on getting the READI Meals (Real Emergency and Disaster
Innovative) program up and running for congregate sites in the area by attending trainings to learn
the process of food preservation. The goal is to use leftover and surplus food and freeze dry it for
emergencies. The extended shelf life will provide healthy meals for those who may be home bound
during an emergency.

Family Careqgiver Support Program

1.1.C, 1.3.B Trualta: Total Enroliments- 89 Caregivers, 756 content views, and 113 Trainings
completed.

0 FCSP Coordinator is providing Trualta professional development to Case Management staff
by facilitating Trualta trainings and Trualta Best Practice-Q+A presentations. By utilizing
Case Managers to identify, educate and enroll family caregivers on Trualta we optimize the
program’s success and can expand the efficiency and capacity of the Family Caregiver
Support Program.

o Trualta now offers an English or Spanish language toggle for the portal, SEAGO AAA Case
Managers in those predominantly Spanish communities are how able to offer caregiver skill-
based education. This expands FCSP capacity to provide inclusive community outreach
and awareness of caregiving skill-based learning.

1.2.B Senior Connect/ Circle of Care: In February, a new FCSP coordinator took the helm,
committed to advancing connections and bolstering support groups. This coordinator is devoted to
expanding the network and reinforcing existing support structures to better serve caregivers in
need. The "Circle of Care" Caregiver Support and Sharing program has continued to flourish.
Building upon established partnerships with the "Senior Connect" network and AzCHOW,
Community Health Workers, Douglas, the initiative has expanded its reach and impact. Through the
availability of a virtual platform and regular in-person support group gatherings, the program has
effectively addressed the diverse needs of caregivers, fostering a growing community of support.
This approach has facilitated increased participation, enabling caregivers who are home-bound or
unable to attend physical meetings to connect and access vital information and resources. As a
result, the program continues to thrive, making a meaningful difference in the lives of caregivers
across our region.

2.1.B: Volunteer recruitment The FCSP has conducted outreach in numerous communities to
recruit volunteers and is currently engaged in the process of identifying volunteer interest.

State Health Insurance Program and Senior Medicare Patrol

2.1.A: The collaboration among Central Intake, SEACUS, and the Salvation Army has boosted
monthly beneficiaries by 25% through referrals.

2.1.B, 5.1.B: The SHIP/SMP program has connected with three new future volunteers in Region VI
and has received contact information from interested individuals.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 34



1.1.C, 3.1.A: SHIP/SMP services and events have been promoted in the community through media
and partnerships with SEACUS, Nogales Chamber of Commerce, and SEAGO Area Agency on
Aging ACOA.

2.1.C: The goal of SHIP/SMP is to promote awareness and education in our communities on ways
to prevent future penalties. SMP aims to increase awareness of fraud and scams by empowering
Medicare beneficiaries to protect themselves from scammers by staying informed of the latest
trends. SHIP/SMP has collaborated with partners and utilizing Newsletters, Constant Contact,
Facebook, and one-on-one counseling sessions, and has distributed flyers in Spanish and English
throughout Region VI.

3.3.A: The South-Eastern Arizona Elder Abuse Taskforce (SEAEAT) is working towards expanding
its reach throughout Region VI with the help of existing partnerships and community outreach. The
coordinators of SHIP/SMP, Long Term Care Ombudsman have started conducting presentations in
the community to explain SEAEAT's efforts to prevent elder abuse.

Long-term Care Ombudsman

The Long Term Care Ombudsman and Volunteers continue seeing the skilled nursing and assisted
living facilities in Region VI. The Ombudsman Coordinator continues to recruit volunteers in
Spanish-speaking areas.

3.3.B: A new LTCO Volunteer has put all the training hours in with the state and now needs seven
more hours of facility training as of 3/18/24.

1.2.B: The LTCO will help with planning and attending seven older American events throughout
Region 6.

2.1.B: Southeastern Arizona Elder Abuse Taskforce (SEAEAT). The SEAEAT team is planning 5
WEAAD events throughout Region 6. Nogales June 5th, Safford June 18th. Duncan June 19th,
Benson June 25th, Tombstone 28th. We are still in the planning stages and recruiting vendors.

Case Management and Information & Referral

1.1.C, 4.1.B Trualta: serves as a crucial resource for new caregivers, providing access to
resources and promoting our programs. Working closely with case managers, our objective is to
increase awareness of this resource among all pertinent parties within our network. This includes
strengthening the bond between caregivers and case managers. Notably, the integration of FCSP
and CMG programs under a single coordinator enhances our ability to coordinate and amplify our
outreach efforts. Leveraging our existing community forums and outreach tools, we will effectively
disseminate information about Trualta and its benefits to caregivers and others in our network.
Central Intake: FCSP highlighted the utilization tracking enhancements facilitated by the Trualta
platform, central intake, and the transition of Case management in two of our most serviced
counties. These measures enable us to effectively monitor the utilization of caregiver services,
units, and education provided

2.1.A: The Central Intake unit screens and identifies gaps in service by referring clients to the
appropriate programs and resources. Before central intake was established this process was more
convoluted and less adhered to by relevant entities.

0 The expansion of AAA's central intake position to a full-time position has been successful.
The two part-time intake specialists have been trained to provide callers with information on
local, state, and federal resources. They are also well-versed in educating callers on
volunteer opportunities and how to access additional resources such as the AAA App,
webpage, and Facebook. We know have a referral turnaround time of 24- 48 hours.

2.1.C: Through extensive outreach efforts, both in-person and via social media channels, the CMC
has successfully established meaningful connections and initiated partnerships with key
organizations, including the Northern Cochise Community Hospital and the Easter Seals Blake
Foundation. These partnerships signify the beginning of collaborative endeavors aimed at
enhancing community support and services.

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 35



e 3.2.A: The CMC remains committed to its ongoing effort of conducting monthly training sessions
tailored for Case Managers, with a specific focus on bolstering and sustaining Home and
Community Based Services (HCBS). This strategic initiative is designed to empower our team with
the requisite expertise and competencies needed to facilitate older adults' ability to age in place,
thereby mitigating the expenses linked to institutionalized long-term care.

Attachments: None.

Action Requested: X Information Only [] Action Requested Below:

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 36



EXECUTIVE BOARD
SEAGO PACKET

MEMO TO: EXECUTIVE BOARD

THROUGH: KEITH DENNIS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

FROM: CHRIS VERTREES, TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM ADMINISTRATOR
DATE: MAY 10, 2024

SUBJECT: TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM UPDATES

The following is a brief update regarding the Transportation and Transit planning projects that
SEAGO is currently involved in:

SEAGO Road Pavement Assessment Project. The SEAGO Administrative Council and Executive
Board approved this project in August for the amount of $200,000 Federal (STBG). This project will
utilize new artificial intelligence road assessment technologies that convert a cell phone into a data
collection device that can conduct pavement assessments, pavement marking assessments, road
condition inventories, as well as traffic sign inventories, and sign condition assessments for SEAGO
member jurisdictions. SEAGO staff will perform the groundwork of driving local roadways and
collecting roadway data. The data will be sent to a vendor that will analyze the data, establish a
roadway inventory, and assign condition assessments to multiple segments of the roadway. The
data will be made available to all of our jurisdictions through a licensed database. All public roads
not on the State system will be evaluated (approximately 4,000 miles).

Update: To date, SEAGO has completed over 65% of our local road network. The Vaisala
contract was set to expire on April 1, 2024. At our January TAC meeting, the TAC voted to
extend the contract an additional 12 months. On April 4, 2024, our Executive Committee
approved a TIP Amendment using STBG funds in the amount of $105,000 to extend the
project an additional 12 months through March 31, 2025.

RTAC Priority Project List: Last year, the SEAGO TAC developed a list of local projects for
submission by RTAC to the State Legislature for consideration in the FY24 State Budget. The list
was approved by the SEAGO Administrative Council and Executive Board in August 2023. On May
11, 2023, the Governor signed into law a $17.8B state budget for State Fiscal Year 2024.
Transportation infrastructure fared very well, receiving $653.5M in one-time revenues. The SEAGO
Region did very well securing over $30 million in projects. In addition, SVMPO planning area
secured almost $10 million in projects. RTAC requested that Greater Arizona COGs/MPOs develop
a project list for FY25 budget discussions.

Update: In June, SEAGO issued a call for projects. The call closed on August 11, 2023. We
received 7 applications. In September, the TAC completed an application review and
application ranking process. SEAGO’s Administrative Committee and Executive Committee
reviewed and approved our FY25 RTAC Priority Project List at our October 5, 2023 meeting.
This project has been assigned a Bill # (2412). According to the latest RTAC update, the Bill
failed to clear committee hearing deadline. It could still be considered for the state budget.
However, the state currently has a deficit and the lack of available funding is problematic for
any new spending proposal

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 37



Nogales Area Transit Feasibility Study: The Nogales/Rio Rico area is the largest remaining
community in Arizona that does not have a Public Transit Program. To explore the demand for a
transit system, SEAGO applied for a transit planning grant through ADOT last December.

Update: On March 30, 2023, SEAGO received a $95,000 award to conduct Phase 1 of the
Study. If a strong need/demand for service is identified, we will apply for Phase 2
(Implementation Plan) in December. The goal is to have a plan in place by the January 2026
FTA Section 5311 application cycle. A public participation plan has been developed.
SEAGO hosted a Stakeholder Public meeting on March 12, 2024. The meeting was attended
by 13 people. SEAGO is currently developing Working Paper #1 that identifies the transit
needs identified by those in attendance.

SVMPO/SEAGO Joint Regional Highway Safety Plan: In 2016, SEAGO and SVMPO partnered
on a Regional Safety Plan. The project resulted in over $3 million in regional safety projects. The
plan has exceeded its useful life as crash data in the plan is over 8 years old. SEAGO and SVMPO
are once again partnering on a plan update. ADOT Traffic Safety Section has approved the project
and ADOT/FHWA has authorized funding for the project. Kimley-Horn has been selected as the
project consultant.

Update: Stakeholder meetings were held in each County on February 6 and 7, 2024. Working
Paper 1 (WP1) - Safety Analysis has been completed and distributed to the TAC for review
and comment. WP1 provides an in-depth review of the historical and current safety analysis
for the southeast Arizona region. It also reviews previous and on-going planning efforts in
the region and the safety performance. The consultant team is currently drafting a project
application for 20th Avenue in Safford/Thatcher.

Bisbee Transit Route Efficiency Study: In December, SEAGO with support from the City of
Bisbee and City of Douglas applied for an FTA Section 5305 Planning grant to conduct the Bisbee
Transit Route Efficiency Study. In March, SEAGO was advised that we received a grant for
$75,000. The study will review the current Bisbee Bus route structure and schedule in effort to
make it more efficient and cost effective. The study will kick-off in FY25 (July 24).

Action Requested: X Information Only [] Action Requested Below

Executive Board Packet 05.17.2024 38



	3.b. FY2025 SEAGO Assessment Schedule.pdf
	Assessment Summary




